
 
 

 
 
Committee: 
 

PLANNING REGULATORY COMMITTEE 

Date: 
 

MONDAY, 14 SEPTEMBER 2020 

Time: 10.30 A.M. 
 

PLEASE NOTE 
 

THIS WILL BE A ‘VIRTUAL MEETING’, A LINK TO WHICH WILL BE 
AVAILABLE ON LANCASTER CITY COUNCIL’S WEBSITE AT LEAST 
24HRS BEFORE THE MEETING. 

 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 
Officers have prepared a report for each of the planning or related applications listed on 
this Agenda.  Copies of all application literature and any representations received are 
available for viewing at the City Council's Public Access website 
http://www.lancaster.gov.uk/publicaccess by searching for the relevant applicant number.   
 
 
1       Apologies for Absence  
 
2        Minutes   
    
  Minutes of meeting held on 17th August 2020 (previously circulated).    

    
3       Items of Urgent Business authorised by the Chair  
 
4        Declarations of Interest   
     
  To receive declarations by Councillors of interests in respect of items on this Agenda.   

Councillors are reminded that, in accordance with the Localism Act 2011, they are required to 
declare any disclosable pecuniary interests which have not already been declared in the 
Council’s Register of Interests. (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary 
interest either in the Register or at the meeting).   

Whilst not a legal requirement, in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 9 and in the 
interests of clarity and transparency, Councillors should declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests which they have already declared in the Register, at this point in the meeting.   

In accordance with Part B Section 2 of the Code Of Conduct, Councillors are required to 
declare the existence and nature of any other interests as defined in paragraphs 8(1) or 9(2) 
of the Code of Conduct.   

 

     
     
      
      

http://www.lancaster.gov.uk/publicaccess


 

Planning Applications for Decision   
 

 Community Safety Implications 

In preparing the reports for this agenda, regard has been paid to the implications of the 
proposed developments on community safety issues.  Where it is considered that the 
proposed development has particular implications for community safety, the issue is fully 
considered within the main body of the individual planning application report. The weight 
attributed to this is a matter for the decision-taker.   

Local Finance Considerations 

Section 143 of the Localism Act requires the local planning authority to have regard to local 
finance considerations when determining planning applications. Local finance considerations 
are defined as a grant or other financial assistance that has been provided; will be provided; 
or could be provided to a relevant authority by a Minister of the Crown (such as New Homes 
Bonus payments), or sums that a relevant authority has, will or could receive in payment of 
the Community Infrastructure Levy.  Whether a local finance consideration is material to the 
planning decision will depend upon whether it could help to make development acceptable in 
planning terms, and where necessary these issues are fully considered within the main body 
of the individual planning application report.  The weight attributed to this is a matter for the 
decision-taker.   

Human Rights Act 

Planning application recommendations have been reached after consideration of The Human 
Rights Act.  Unless otherwise explicitly stated in the report, the issues arising do not appear to 
be of such magnitude to override the responsibility of the City Council to regulate land use for 
the benefit of the community as a whole, in accordance with national law.   

  
 

5       A5 20/00237/OUT Timber Yard Rabbit Lane 
Gressingham 

Upper Lune 
Valley 
Ward 

(Pages 4 - 
11) 

     
  Outline application for the demolition 

of existing agricultural buildings, 
erection of 2 holiday cottages, 
installation of package treatment 
plant and associated access. 

  

6       A6 20/00579/VCN 9 Beech Avenue Galgate Ellel Ward (Pages 12 - 
15) 

  Change of use of a shop (A1) to 
dwelling (C3), erection of single 
storey extensions to the side and 
rear, construction of a ramp to the 
front, installation of replacement 
window and replacement of a door 
with a window (pursuant to the 
variation of condition 2 of 
18/01229/FUL to amend the 
approved plans). 

  

https://planning.lancaster.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=Q6KRYWIZLUL00
https://planning.lancaster.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QBGBE4IZN2I00


 

7       A7 20/00720/FUL 49 Bare Avenue Morecambe Bare Ward (Pages 16 - 
18) 

  Erection of a single storey rear 
extension. 

  

      
8       Delegated List (Pages 19 - 23) 
 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS 
 
(i) Membership 

 
 Councillors Sandra Thornberry (Chair), Dave Brookes (Vice-Chair), Paul Anderton, 

Richard Austen-Baker, Mandy Bannon, Alan Biddulph, Abbott Bryning, Keith Budden, 
Roger Cleet, Tim Dant, Mel Guilding, Janice Hanson, Cary Matthews, Joyce Pritchard and 
Robert Redfern 
 

(ii) Substitute Membership 
 

 Councillors Victoria Boyd-Power (Substitute), Kevin Frea (Substitute), June Greenwell 
(Substitute), Tim Hamilton-Cox (Substitute), Colin Hartley (Substitute), David Whitworth 
(Substitute) and Peter Yates (Substitute) 
 

(iii) Queries regarding this Agenda 
 

 Please contact Democratic Services: email democracy@lancaster.gov.uk 
 

(iv) Changes to Membership, substitutions or apologies 
 

 Please contact Democratic Support, telephone 582170, or alternatively email 
democraticsupport@lancaster.gov.uk.  
 
 

 
KIERAN KEANE, 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE, 
TOWN HALL, 
DALTON SQUARE, 
LANCASTER, LA1 1PJ 
 
Published on 28th August 2020.   

 

https://planning.lancaster.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QD9D6CIZFTG00
mailto:democraticsupport@lancaster.gov.uk


 

Page 1 of 8 
20/00237/OUT 

 CODE 

 

 
 

Agenda Item A5 

Application Number 20/00237/OUT 

Proposal 
Outline application for the demolition of existing agricultural buildings, 
erection of 2 holiday cottages, installation of package treatment plant 
and associated access 

Application site 

Timber Yard 

Rabbit Lane 

Gressingham 

Lancashire 

Applicant Mr Leonard Metcalfe 

Agent David Hall 

Case Officer Ms Rebecca Halliwell 

Departure No  

Summary of Recommendation 

 

Refusal  

 

 
 
(i) Procedural Matters 

 
This application has been referred to the Planning Regulatory Committee by Cllr Scothern on the 
grounds that the development would be a diversification as the farm was badly hit by floods during 
the recent storms, it would benefit the local economy and would bring back into use and improve a 
current derelict site. So in line with the Scheme of Delegation in the Council’s Constitution, the 
application must be determined by the Planning Regulatory Committee. 

 
1.0 Application Site and Setting  

 
1.1 The application site relates to a former sawmill and timber yard located on the eastern side of Rabbit 

Lane, circa. 400m from the edge of the village of Gressingham. The site is in the ownership of Fleets 
Farm. Fleets Farm main farmyard and buildings are located on Fleet Lane / Eskrigge Lane, 
approximately 350m south west of the village of Gressingham, circa 850m south west of the application 
site. The site is located on land within the defined Countryside Area. 
 

1.2 The site is partially overgrown with two substantial timber and corrugated metal buildings which are in 
disrepair. A number of smaller structures are also present within the site. The site is accessed via an 
existing access off Rabbit Lane, which currently serves several existing dwellings on the periphery of 
the village.  
 

1.3 The boundaries surrounding the application site comprise of a mix of mature trees and hedging with 
a traditional field head on the eastern boundary. There is a small wood immediately to the south of 
the site, while the remainder of the site is surrounding by open agricultural fields 

.  
 

Page 4Agenda Item 5



 

Page 2 of 8 
20/00237/OUT 

 CODE 

 

2.0 Proposal 
 

2.1 Outline planning permission is sought for the demolition of existing agricultural buildings, erection of 
2 holiday cottages, installation of package treatment plant and associated access. This application 
seeks to determine whether the principle of the development is acceptable, all matters are reserved 
except access. Should outline planning permission be granted, a future reserved matters application 
will deal with the appearance of the dwellings, landscaping, the layout and the scale of the 
development.  
 

2.2 The submitted site plan indicated that the development will comprise of a semi-detached property 
split into 2 holiday cottages, it will be sited on part of the existing buildings footprint. The septic tank 
will be sited in the south eastern corner of the application site. The access will comprise of two car 
park gravel areas / turning areas to the west and south of the proposed cottages. The existing access 
requires modest improvement to provide radius kerbs 

  
 
3.0 Site History 

 
3.1 There is no formal planning history for this site, however, a pre-application query was received last 

year: 
 

Application Number Proposal Decision 

19/00565/PRETWO Redevelopment of former sawmill/wood yard to 2no. 
holiday lets 

Advice Issued 

 
4.0 Consultation Responses 

 
4.1 The following responses have been received from statutory and internal consultees: 

 

Consultee Response 

Highways No objection, however for reasons of highway safety have requested the inclusion 
of a number of conditions relating to the creation of a pedestrian access, and the 
proposed works to the vehicular access. 

Environmental 
Health – 
Contamination 

No objection subject to the appropriate sampling and site investigations taking place 
and the attachment of standard contaminated land condition.  

Fire Safety No comments received during the statutory consultation period. 

United Utilities No objection subject to conditions in relation to foul and surface water drainage. 

Parish Council No objection. 

 
4.2 No letters or representation have been received from the public regarding this application. 

 
5.0 Analysis 

 
5.1 The key considerations in the assessment of this application are: 

 
Principle of the development (Development Management DPD Policies DM14 (Proposals Involving 
Employment Land & Premises), DM23 (Visitor Accommodation), DM47 (Economic Development in 
Rural Areas),  DM48 (Diversification of the Rural Economy), and DM49 (The Re-Use and Conversion 
of Rural Buildings) and NPPF Section 2: Achieving sustainable development, Section 6: Building a 
strong, competitive economy and Section 11: Making effective use of land) 
 
Design / Visual Impact (Development Management DPD Policy DM29 (Key Design Principles) and 
DM46 (Development and Landscape Impact) and NPPF Section 12: Achieving well-designed places) 
 
Residential Amenity (Development Management DPD Policy DM29 (Key Design Principles) and 
NPPF Section 12: Achieving well-designed places) 

Page 5



 

Page 3 of 8 
20/00237/OUT 

 CODE 

 

Highways (Development Management DPD Policies DM60 (Enhancing Accessibility and Transport 
Linkages) and DM62 (Vehicle Parking Provision) and NPPF Section 9: Promoting Sustainable 
Transport) 
 
Biodiversity (Development Management DPD Policy DM45 (Protection of Trees, Hedgerows and 
Woodland) and Policy DM44 (The Protection and Enhancement of Biodiversity and NPPF Section 15: 
Conserving and enhancing the natural environment) 
 
Drainage Development Management DPD Policy DM34 (Surface Water Run-Off and Sustainable 
Drainage); and DM36 (Protecting Water Resources and Infrastructure). 
 

 
  
5.2 Principle of the development 

 
5.2.1 
 

Local policies seek to direct visitor accommodation to locations which can be considered accessible. 
New development should be as sustainable as possible, in particular it should be convenient to walk, 
cycle and travel by public transport and homes, workplaces shops, schools, health centres, recreation, 
leisure and community facilities.  Policy DM60 of the Development Management DPD sets out that 
proposals should minimise the need to travel, particularly by private car, and maximise the 
opportunities for the use of walking, cycling and public transport. 
 

5.2.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.2.3 
 
 
 
 
 
5.2.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.2.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.2.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Policy DM47 states that development proposals for economic development within rural areas which 
maintain and enhance rural vitality and character will be supported where it is demonstrated that they 
improve the sustainability of rural communities by bringing local economic, environmental and 
community benefits. This includes economic development which is an appropriate scale and nature 
and assists in the diversification of the rural economy, including the diversification of agricultural 
holdings. This is reiterated in Policy DM49 which relates to farm diversification proposal, and very 
much focuses on supporting the re-use of existing buildings to supplement farm income. Any proposal 
for farm diversification should first look at the existing buildings and brownfield sites for opportunity to 
create additional revenue streams. 
 
The submission includes some information in relation to a justification for the proposal on the grounds 
of farm diversification. A planning history search of Fleets Farm identified that the fam holding has 
already diversified into equine related activities as part of planning application 13/00566/CU which 
gained consent for the change of use of the agricultural building into equine livery stables, retention of 
existing menage and associated floodlighting and car parking.  
 
A Financial Appraisal has been submitted in support of this application which includes details of the 
farm and livery operating costs and profit levels for the last two financial years. It is clear from this 
information that the farm operations will remain the dominant business activity for Fleets Farm but the 
existing livery business and the proposed holiday cottages can play an essential role in ensuring the 
future viability of the farm. The Council believe that insufficient justification has been provided to 
support the need for a further farm diversification proposal. The flooding of the farm along with the 
current economic climate are not adequate reasoning given they are all circumstantial to the applicant.  
 
Policy DM47 goes on to further state that a preference for development should be given to the re-use 
of Previously Developed Land (PDL) and the conversion and re-use of existing rural buildings, in 
accordance Policy DM49. Given the poor state of the buildings present within the site this application 
seeks consent for their demolition and the erection of a new building to accommodate the two holiday 
cottages. The submitted planning statement concludes that the land is considered as previously 
development land, no longer required for agricultural purposes.  
 
As the structure cannot be re-used or converted, it is necessary to demonstrate no other suitable 
locations within the nearby settlement exist for the proposed development along with a robust 
demonstration that the benefits of the proposal outweigh the impacts, including the generation of 
significant economic benefits. Paragraph 6-3.9 of the Planning Statement states that ‘Agriculture will 
remain the primary use of the business as the financial appraisal makes clear. The existing buildings 
while in poor condition have been on site for many years and are of permanent and substantial 
construction and no longer required for agricultural use. The proposed replacement building is of 
similar scale and this can be conditioned accordingly. The site is previously developed, it is within the 

Page 6



 

Page 4 of 8 
20/00237/OUT 

 CODE 

 

 
 
 
 
5.2.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.2.8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.2.9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.2.10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.2.11 
 
 
 
5.2.12 
 
 
 
5.2.13 
 
 
 

farm holding and the reasons for this choice of site are well documented in the report. It is am modest 
proposal for two holiday cottages appropriate to the site and area which will not generate significant 
traffic movements on what is a quiet rural lane.’ 
 
It is acknowledged that the site itself has been previously developed for the purposes of agriculture / 
forestry. It is not considered to be Previously Developed Lane (PDL) by virtue of the NPPF definition 
which does not include land previously developed for agriculture of forestry purposes. It is not 
considered that the application demonstrates that the proposal satisfies the requirements of DM47. 
No evidence has been provided to demonstrate that a satisfactory robust exercise has taken place 
over alternative locations within the surrounding area. The planning statement confirms that this is the 
choice of site due to it being within the farm holding. However, this does not justify sufficient reasoning. 
The rural economy is a valuable asset to the district, creating jobs for local residents, encouraging 
visitors and generating investment in the district’s economy as a whole. The creation of two holiday 
cottages will not create jobs for local residents, however it will attract visitors to the area. However, the 
economic benefit of the proposal does not outweigh the cumulative harm of the proposal in terms of 
visual impact and the unsustainable location.  
 
In terms of sustainability, the site is located within a rural location, remote from attractions and 
settlements/local facilities.  The site is located 400m from the edge of Gressingham Village. There are 
two bus services which run between Gressingham and Lancaster the 81A and the 582 which run every 
2 hours (the nearest residential stop is circa 515m south west of the application site along a road with 
the national speed limit but no pavement or lighting). Whilst the proposal is small scale in scale it is 
not in an accessible location close to existing tourism and leisure attractions as required by local 
planning policy. 
 
In relation to holiday accommodation in the form of holiday cottages Policy DM23 sets out that 

proposals for other visitor accommodation (not hotels), including bed & breakfast and self-catering 
accommodation (excluding caravan sites, camping pods, log cabins and chalets which are 
addressed under Policy DM52 of this DPD) will be acceptable where the proposal:  
 

I. Is on a site within the existing built-up area of Lancaster, Morecambe, Heysham, Carnforth or 
sustainable settlement that provides a sufficient level of basic service provision, preferably on 
previously developed land; or  

II. Is on a site that has a specific land allocation or an identified direction of mixed growth set out 
elsewhere in the Local Plan; or  

III. Provides accommodation of an appropriate nature and scale to meet the needs of an existing 
visitor facility or attraction and is located adjacent to the facility or attraction; or  

IV. Involves the conversion or re-use of a suitable existing rural building(s) and the proposal 
complies with other relevant policies within this document, particularly the criteria set out in 
Policy DM49.  

 
The proposed development would be located on land previously developed for agriculture / forestry.  
However, it is not considered brownfield (PDL) land in accordance with the NPPF definition which 
does not include developed land for agriculture or forestry. It would however, not be located within a 
sustainable settlement. It is however, located 400m from the village of Gressingham, whereby the 
occupants of the cottages could access the facilities in Gressingham by car in less than 5 minutes. In 
the opinion of officer’s the development cannot comply with criteria i. 
 
The application site is not on a site that has a specified land allocation or an identified direction of 
mixed growth. Nor would it be sited adjacent to a facility or attraction to meet the needs of the existing 
facility, therefore fails to comply with criteria ii and iii. 
 
As mentioned above the existing buildings present on site are not capable of being re-used or re-
developed and these will be demolished. The site is also considered to be in an unsustainable location 
which fails to meet the requirements of DM49 and fails to comply with criteria iv.  
 
It is, therefore, considered that the principle of the form of development is not acceptable and fails to 
accord with Policies DM23, DM47, DM48 and DM49. Further consideration of other issues are noted 
below. 
 

5.3 Design / Visual Impact 

Page 7



 

Page 5 of 8 
20/00237/OUT 

 CODE 

 

 
5.3.1 This outline application only seeks consent for access with the matters of appearance, layout, 

landscaping and scale for later consideration. However, due to the sensitive nature of the site this will 
be considered below.  
 

5.3.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.3.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.3.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.3.5 
 
 
 
5.3.6 
 
 
 
 
 
5.3.7 
 
 
 
 
 
5.3.8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.3.9 
 
 
 
 

National policy requires development to be of good design and contribute positively to making places 
better for people, requiring development to be visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout 
and appropriate and effective landscaping. Planning permission should be refused for poor design that 
fails to take opportunities for improving the quality and character of an area.  This is reiterated in Policy 
DM29 of the DM DPD which echoes the above whilst stating that that design should have regard to 
local distinctiveness, have appropriate siting, layout, materials, orientation and scale. 
 
The proposed cottages will be sited on the footprint of the existing buildings albeit with a large floor 
area. The existing floor area is approximately 145 square metres, the replacement buildings 154 
square metres. The proposed development would result in the introduction of a building that could 
appear incongruent and impact openness through design, materials and use to a greater degree than 
larger congruent agricultural buildings, particularly when this involves a change of use from those 
excluded from being brownfield land into ‘developed land’. 
 
Any development at the site would need to be able to demonstrate that it was of a scale appropriate 
to its location and in keeping with the existing on site and surrounding landscape character.  For this 
particular site it is clear that there has been a form of structure in-situ for many years and that it has 
been well screened at certain times of the year from the surrounding farmland by substantial tree cover 
and shrubs. As mentioned above, the arboricultural impact assessment confirms that a number of 
trees and hedge will be removed from the north / eastern boundaries, this would have offered a level 
of screening. Therefore, to reduce the visual impact of the proposal boundary treatments and 
landscaping could be conditioned to ensure that the site is appropriately enclosed in order to prevent 
significant adverse impacts from domestic paraphernalia. 
 
Policy DM46 sets out that development on sites outside of the protected and designated landscapes 
will be supported where the proposal is in-keeping with the landscape character and is appropriate to 
its surroundings in terms of siting, scale, massing, design and external appearance.  

 
The application site is distinctly rural in character and appearance. The sites visual relationship with 
the surrounding countryside is considered to be further emphasised by the open fields to the north and 
east of the site. The north and eastern boundaries are enclosed by trees and hedges, this is to be 
removed to facilitate the erection of the holiday cottages. The site is abutted to the south by a small 
woodland, this creates a strong divide between the village of Gressingham and the application site. 
 

Whilst the site is screened by existing trees and hedges, there are several large gaps which 
provide access and views over the open fields. Therefore, while the vegetation does provide a 
degree of enclosure, they do not create a strong physical or visual separation from the adjacent 
farmland.  
 
Given the proposed nature of the development and its detachment from the existing built form of 
the village of Gressingham it is considered that the introduction of 2 holiday cottages would result 
in the encroachment of residential development into the open countryside. Taking into 
consideration, the loss of the agricultural buildings, the erection of holiday accommodation and 
the urbanisation of the application site it is considered the cumulative impact the development 
would have would be of detriment to the character and appearance of the defined open 
countryside by virtue of the encroachment of residential development into the countryside, 
including car parking, gardens and domestic paraphernalia into the open countryside which would 
fail to improve the character and quality of the area and would further erode the landscape character 
of the area.  
 
The site does not therefore represent an appropriate location for holiday cottages having regard to the 
development plan and the character and appearance of the area. It would conflict with policies DM29, 
DM23 and DM46 of the DM DPD which, amongst other things, set out the hierarchy for development 
and seek to protect, conserve and enhance the landscape.  Furthermore, it would conflict with 
paragraph 170 of the National Planning Policy Framework which requires development to contribute 

Page 8



 

Page 6 of 8 
20/00237/OUT 

 CODE 

 

 
 
 
5.3.10 

to and enhance the natural environment including by recognising the intrinsic character and beauty of 
the countryside. 

 
On this basis, not only is it considered that the proposed development would result in an unacceptable 
urbanising impact of the open countryside, but the principle of the holiday cottages is also 
inappropriate. Therefore, the harm in which this development will result into the landscape is not 
justified, the application cannot therefore be supported in terms of its landscape impact.  
 
 

5.4 Residential Amenity 
 

5.4.1 The nearest residential dwelling would be sited approximately 160m south west of the application site 
separated by a small woodland. The separation distance, orientation and surrounding landscape will 
ensure that no harmful impact would occur in regards to residential amenity on the occupiers of the 
holiday cottages and the nearby residential dwellings.   

  
 

5.5 Highways 
 

5.5.1 The site already benefits from a gated access point off Rabbit Lane currently used occasionally by 
agricultural vehicles. The access improvements are modest and will include the provision of radius 
kerbs to keep the access as informal as possible to reduce the visual impact of the development. The 
presence of the layby adjacent to the site entrance ensures that there is adequate visibility for vehicles 
exiting the site without having to undertake major engineering works to the entrance. The proposed 
car parking spaces have been split into two separate areas to minimise the impact on the existing 
trees and to overcome concerns expressed in the pre-app submission that a larger car park 
“urbanises” the site. However, it is considered that the splitting of the 2 car park areas does not 
overcome the urbanisation impact of the site as the development still appears domesticated and 
includes the creation of a large expanse of parking.  
 

 
5.5.2 
 
 
 

 
The development has been assessed by the County Highways Officer who has confirmed that the 
proposed development will have only a moderate impact on vehicle movement through the area. 
Therefore, they offer no objection to the scheme subject to the attachment of a number of planning 
conditions should consent be granted by councillors. 
 

5.6 
 
5.6.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.6.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.6.4 
 
 
 
5.7 
 
5.7.1 
 
 

Biodiversity 
 
The existing site has a mature landscape due to being vacant and left to overgrow. An independent 
ecological consultant has undertaken ecological surveys, site appraisals and impact assessments at 
the site. Bats, nesting birds, otters and brown hares are known to occur in the local area but the report 
concludes that there was no conclusive evidence of any specifically protected species regularly 
occurring on the site or the surrounding areas which would be negatively affected by the site’s 
development providing the recommended mitigation is undertaken.  
 
The vegetation to be cleared has been identified of being of low ecological significance. The report 
goes on to further state that the protection of trees on the site boundary and additional landscaping 
(as proposed as part of the AIA recommendations) will promote structural diversity in both the canopy 
and at ground level and will encourage a wider variety of wildlife to use the site than presently occurs. 
The development is considered acceptable subject to the mitigation measures being required by 
condition to be carried out in accordance with the Arboricultural Implications Assessment.  
 
The proposal also includes additional new planting. At this stage the detail of the proposed planting 
has not been provided other than the location, this can be dealt with at Reserved Matter stage if 
councillors where minded to support the application. 
 
Drainage 
 
No drainage scheme has been submitted as part of this application, but rather a utilities statement, 
however foul and surface water drainage are discussed below.  

 

Page 9



 

Page 7 of 8 
20/00237/OUT 

 CODE 

 

5.7.2 
 
5.7.3 
 
 
 
 
 
5.7.4 
 
 
 
 
 
5.7.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.7.1 
 
5.7.2 

Foul Drainage  
 
The foul sewage will be directed to a shared treatment plant which permission is sought for as part of 
this application. The treatment plant will be sited in the south eastern corner of the site, no details of 
the equipment has been submitted in support of this application. A detailed ground condition 
investigation will be undertaken as part of the reserved matters application to ensure that the proposed 
location is the most sustainable.  
 
National Planning Policy Guidance on “Water supply, waste water and water quality” sets out the 
requirements where connection to a public sewer is not feasible in paragraph 020 (Ref ID: 34-020-
20140306).This requires that a package sewage treatment plant (PSTP) is considered in the first 
instance and that any final discharge should meet EA standards. Septic tanks can only be considered 
where a PSTP is not feasible.  
 
Given the proposed size of the holiday cottages and the provision of a new package treatment plant it 
is considered that this would be acceptable. However, there is some concern that no detailed ground 
investigation report has been submitted, and furthermore the location of the package treatment plant 
is proposed within the root protection area of a common oak tree (T7), which has at least 20 years 
lifespan remaining. Given this is an outline planning application these matters could be addressed via 
the reserved matters route. 
 
 
Surface Water Drainage  
 
In the Utilities Statement it explains that surface water drainage would be directed to a soakaway in 
the landscaped area to the northern end of the plot. A detailed investigation into ground conditions 
would be undertaken as part of the reserved matters application to ensure this is the most ideal location 
within the site. Whilst the applicant has stated that drainage will be handled by soakaway there is 
nothing before officers to suggest that this is practical, and feasible given the ground conditions may 
not be suitable to allow soakaways to be used. The applicants contaminated land desk study suggests 
that the site is located on glacial clay deposits with siltstone below this. In the absence of any ground 
investigation works the LPA need to be convinced that the site can drain. There is insufficient 
information supplied with the application to demonstrate the site can be drained of surface water and 
therefore fails to comply with Policy DM34 of the Development Management DPD. 

 
6.0 Conclusion and Planning Balance 

 
6.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The site is located within the defined open countryside area, divorced from services resulting in 
reliance upon a private car and as such is not considered to be sustainable in terms of its location.   
Whilst policy encourages the use of previously developed land and the provision of visitor 
accommodation, development should ensure no adverse impacts on the character or appearance 
of the surrounding area. It is considered that there are no special circumstances, in this instance, to 
justify the erection of 2 holiday cottages in such an unsustainable location. The flooding of the main 
farmstead is circumstantial (and detached from this application site) and cannot be considered as a 
sufficient reason to justify the detachment of the application site from the main farmstead or for its 
impact upon the open countryside.  
 
The development would result in an incongruous form of development which would fail to reflect the 
rural character or nature of the surrounding area. By reason of the site's open and distinctly rural 
character and appearance, which is considered to relate more in a visual sense to the surrounding 
countryside as opposed to the built-up area of Gressingham, the proposed development would result 
in the encroachment of residential development into the open countryside which would fail to 
improve, but rather erode the character and quality of the area and harm its intrinsic character and 
beauty.  There has also been a lack of information supplied concerning how surface water will be 
managed on the site, and therefore councillors are recommended to refuse this application. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



 

Page 8 of 8 
20/00237/OUT 

 CODE 

 

Recommendation 
 

That Outline Planning Consent BE REFUSED for the following reasons: 

 
1. The site is located within the open countryside, separated from key services and facilities and as such 

is considered to be unsustainable in terms of its location with occupants reliant on the private car.  The 
proposal is therefore contrary to the aims and objectives of the National Planning Policy Framework, 
in particular Section 5, and Policies DM1 and DM60 of the Development Management Development 
Plan Document. 

 
2. It has not been demonstrated that the development would enhance or maintain the vitality of the local 

community, or help sustain services in nearby settlements, and there has been no exceptional 
justification provided to support the creation of 2 holiday cottages in an unsustainable location. As a 
consequence, the proposal fails to accord with Development Management Development Plan 
Document Policies DM1, DM23, DM47, DM48, DM49 and DM60 and National Planning Policy 
Framework Sections 2, 5 and 9.  

 
3. The proposal would harm the visual amenity of the area, and result in urbanisation in the landscape, 

through the introduction of a built form of development that would appear as an overly conspicuous 
and discordant feature, that would visually intrude within, and cause harm to the surrounding tranquil 
landscape. The proposal is therefore found to be contrary to the aims and objectives of Section 15 of 
the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy DM46 of the Development Management DPD.  

 
4. Insufficient information has been provided to show how the site would manage surface water 

associated with the development, and therefore could lead to flooding both on, and off the site. On this 
basis, the proposal is considered to contradict Section 14 of the National Planning Policy Framework 
and Policies DM34 and DM36 of the Development Management Development Plan Document.  

 
 
Article 35, Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 
 
 
Lancaster City Council takes a positive and proactive approach to development proposals, in the interests of 
delivering sustainable development. As part of this approach the council offers a pre-application service, 
aimed at positively influencing development proposals. Whilst the applicant has taken advantage of this 
service prior to submission, the resulting proposal is unacceptable for the reasons prescribed in the notice. 
The applicant is encouraged to liaise with the case officer in an attempt to resolve the reasons for refusal. 
 
 
Background Papers 
  

 

Page 11



 

Page 1 of 4 
20/00579/VCN 

 CODE 

 

 
 

Agenda Item A6 

Application Number 20/00579/VCN 

Proposal 

 
Change of use of a shop (A1) to dwelling (C3), erection of single storey 
extensions to the side and rear, construction of a ramp to the front, 
installation of replacement window and replacement of a door with a 
window (pursuant to the variation of condition 2 of 18/01229/FUL to 
amend the approved plans) 
 

Application site 

 

9 Beech Avenue 

Galgate 

Lancaster 

Lancashire 
 

Applicant Mr Andrew Whittaker 

Agent Mrs Nola Jackson 

Case Officer Mr Robert Clarke 

Departure No 

Summary of Recommendation 

 

Approval 
 

 
 
(i) Procedural Matters 

 
This form of development would normally be dealt with under the Scheme of Delegation.  However, 
the application site is owned by Lancaster City Council, and as such the application must be 
determined by the Planning Committee. 

 
1.0 Application Site and Setting  

 
1.1 The property which forms the subject of this application relates to a two storey semi-detached 

property, which is located on Beech Avenue in Galgate. The north of Beech Avenue is characterised 
with residential properties and to the south of Beech Avenue is an open space with playgrounds 
located within. Beech Avenue mainly consists of semi-detached and terrace residential properties. 
 

1.2 The site falls within the Countryside Area as designated in the Strategic Policies and Land 
Allocations DPD on the Lancaster District Local Plan proposals map, whilst Galgate is identified as 
a sustainable rural settlement. 

  
 
2.0 Proposal 

 
2.1 Planning permission has already been granted through application 18/01229/FUL for the change of 

use of the former shop to a dwelling and for the erection of a side and rear extension with associated 
access ramps and alterations to fenestration. This application is a Section 73 Variation of Condition 

Page 12Agenda Item 6



 

Page 2 of 4 
20/00579/VCN 

 CODE 

 

application which seeks consent to vary the approved plans in order to amend and increase in size 
the approved footprint of the extension to facilitate an additional bedroom within the property. The 
proposed extension will now form a full wrap around side and rear extension as opposed to the 
independent side and rear extensions previously granted. The side element of the proposed 
extension will feature a width of 4.3 metres and a length of 8.55 metres including the projection 
beyond the rear elevation. The rear element will feature a width of 10.7 metres including the 
projection beyond the side elevation and will feature a depth of 3.1 metres as measured from the 
original rear elevation. The extension will feature a wraparound hipped roof with a maximum height 
of 3.5 metres and an eaves height of 2.6 metres. 
 

2.2 The extension will be finished externally with a render finish and a standing seam effect membrane 
roof, new white upvc windows and doors will be installed throughout. 

  
 
3.0 Site History 

 
3.1 A number of relevant applications relating to this site have previously been received by the Local 

Planning Authority.  These include: 
 

Application Number Proposal Decision 

18/01229/FUL Change of use of a shop (A1) to dwelling (C3), erection 
of single storey extensions to the side and rear, 
construction of a ramp to the front, installation of 

replacement window and replacement of a door with a 
window 

Permitted 

07/00083/CU Change of use from tanning studio to office/shop Permitted 

05/00843/CU Change of use from a ground floor lock up shop to a coin 
operated launderette 

Refused 

03/01075/CU Change of use of vacant butchers’ shop to tanning studio Permitted 

 
4.0 Consultation Responses 

 
4.1 The following responses have been received from statutory and internal consultees: 

 

Consultee Response 

Ellel Parish Council No objections 

County Highways No objections 

Fire Safety Officer No comments received 

Property Services No comments received 

 
4.2 The following responses have been received from members of the public: 

 

 No correspondence has been received at the time of compiling this report. 
 

 
5.0 Analysis 

 
5.1 The key considerations in the assessment of this application are: 

 

 Principle of the development - Development Management DPD Policies DM1: New 
residential development and meeting housing needs, DM2: Housing standards, DM4: 
Residential development outside main urban areas, DM13: Residential conversions, 
Strategic Policies and Land Allocations; Policies SP2: Lancaster district settlement hierarchy, 
SP6: The delivery of new homes, H2: housing delivery in rural areas of the district and 
National Planning Policy Framework Sections 2, 5, 12. 
 

 Design and visual impact – Development Management DPD Policies DM29: Key design 
principles and National Planning Policy Framework Section 12. 

Page 13



 

Page 3 of 4 
20/00579/VCN 

 CODE 

 

 
 

 Residential amenity – Development Management DPD Policies DM2: Housing Standards, 
DM29: Key design principles and National Planning Policy Framework Section 12. 
 

 Highway Impacts - Development Management DPD Policies DM29: Key design principles, 
DM62: Vehicle Parking Provision and National Planning Policy Framework Section 12. 
 
 
 

5.2 Principle of Development- Development Management DPD Policies DM1: New residential 
development and meeting housing needs, DM2: Housing standards, DM4: Residential development 
outside main urban areas, DM13: Residential conversions and National Planning Policy Framework 
Sections 2, 5, 12. 
 

5.2.1 
 

The principle of the use of the site as a domestic dwelling has already been established through the 
previous 2018 planning permission. The site is located within the rural settlement of Galgate which 
is identified as a sustainable settlement within Policy SP2 of the Strategic Policies and Land 
Allocations DPD. Therefore, it is within a sustainable location within which the provision of new 
residential accommodation is encouraged and consequently the principal of the development 
proposed remains acceptable. 

  
5.3 Design and Visual Impact- Development Management DPD Policies DM29: Key design principles 

and National Planning Policy Framework Section 12. 
 

5.3.1 The proposed development has been designed to reflect that of the existing dwelling, particularly in 
terms of the material palette and therefore the proposed appearance is considered complement the 
character of the surrounding properties along Beech Avenue. The proposed extension, due to its 
location on a corner plot, will partially breach the established building line down the frontage of the 
Elm Avenue properties. However, the subject property is located at a skewed angle relative to Elm 
Avenue whilst the established boundary hedgerows provide a screen to prevent the building line 
from being viewed in the street scene. On this basis, the proposal will not result in any adverse visual 
impact when viewed from within the street scene.  
 

5.4 Residential Amenity - Development Management DPD Policies DM2: Housing Standards, DM29: 
Key design principles and National Planning Policy Framework Section 12. 
 

5.4.1 New dwellings must meet the Nationally Described Space Standards with respect to floor areas. 
The proposed application includes the provision of two single bed spaces and a double, the proposal 
therefore meets the floor area requirements prescribed within the Nationally Described Space 
Standards. 
 

5.4.2 The plans clearly show that all of the rooms are of an appropriate size and provide for all the facilities 
required. The outlook from the primary living spaces meets standards. The external amenity space 
is ample for the dwelling, with allocated off-street parking spaces and a suitable garden area 
provided within. 

 
5.4.3 

 
The proposed single storey extension to the side will have two windows located to the western 
elevation. This will look towards the neighbouring property of 10 Beech Avenue. However, the 
proposed extension will be set 35m away from the neighbouring property of 10 Beech Avenue with 
an intervening 2m high boundary hedge. Therefore the proposed works are thought to have no 
impact upon the residential amenity. 
 

5.5 Highways Impact - Development Management DPD Policies DM29: Key design principles, DM62: 
Vehicle Parking Provision and National Planning Policy Framework Section 12. 
 

5.5.1 There are two existing off-street parking spaces that are accessed from Beech Avenue.  These are 
to remain in situ. Appendix B of the Development Management DPD sets out parking requirements. 
3-bed dwellings should provide a 2 car parking spaces, therefore the proposal is acceptable in this 
regard. 
 

Page 14



 

Page 4 of 4 
20/00579/VCN 

 CODE 

 

  
 

 
6.0 Conclusion and Planning Balance 

 
6.1 The change of use of a shop (A1) to dwelling (C3), erection of single storey extensions to the side 

and rear is within a sustainable location where the provision of new residential accommodation is 
encouraged. The proposed conversion of the ground floor into a 3-bed dwelling has demonstrated 
that the plans meet the requirements of the Nationally Described Space Standards and that an 
appropriate standard of accommodation and an appropriate level of outlook, privacy and free of 
overlooking and overshadowing can be provided. The proposed development has been designed 
and is to use materials that are keeping with the character of the surrounding area. The proposed 
works are not thought to have an adverse visual impact when viewed from within the street scene. 
The proposed works are considered to have no impact upon the residential amenities of the two 
nearest residential properties of 2 Elm Avenue and 10 Beech Avenue. This is due to the high 
boundary treatments along the northern and western boundaries and the distance that the proposed 
extensions are set away from the neighbouring properties. There are two existing off-street parking 
spaces that are accessed from Beech Avenue, these are to remain in situ and will be utilised by the 
dwelling proposed. 
 

 
Recommendation 
 

That Planning Permission BE GRANTED subject to the following conditions: 

 

Condition no. Description Type 

1 Development to commence by 11 December 2021 Control 

2 Development to accord to approved plans Control 
 

 
 
Article 35, Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 
 
 
In accordance with the above legislation, Lancaster City Council has made the recommendation in a positive 
and proactive way to foster the delivery of sustainable development, working proactively with the applicant to 
secure development that improves the economic, social and environmental conditions of the area. The 
recommendation has been made having had regard to the impact of development, and in particular to the 
relevant policies contained in the Development Plan, as presented in full in the officer report, and to all relevant 
material planning considerations, including the National Planning Policy Framework, National Planning 
Practice Guidance and relevant Supplementary Planning Documents/ Guidance. 
 
 
Background Papers 
 
None 
  

 

Page 15



 

Page 1 of 3 
20/00720/FUL 

 CODE 

 

 
 

Agenda Item A7 

Application Number 20/00720/FUL 

Proposal Erection of a single storey rear extension 

Application site 

49 Bare Avenue 

Morecambe 

Lancashire 

LA4 6BD 

Applicant Mr. & Mrs. R. Jimenez 

Agent John Manley 

Case Officer Mr Sam Robinson 

Departure No 

Summary of Recommendation 

 

Approval 

 

 
 
(i) Procedural Matters 

 
This form of development would normally be dealt with the Scheme of Delegation. However, as the 
applicant is an employee of Lancaster City Council the application must be determined by the 
Planning Regulatory Committee. 
 
The application originally included a rear dormer within the description, but after discussions with 
the agent it was confirmed that this would be constructed under permitted development rights and 
as such, has been removed from the description. Neighbours were notified of this change through 
letter on 27 August allowing for a further 2 weeks for additional comments.  

 
1.0 Application Site and Setting  

 
1.1 49 Bare Avenue is a semi-detached dwelling located in a residential area of Bare. The property 

features a gable roof with a dashed exterior, red roof tiles with white uPVC windows throughout. To 
the rear is a large garden measuring c. 300m2, the garden slopes from the rear elevation of the 
property towards the rear boundary and is enclosed by stone walls and fencing. To the side (east) 
lies the car park of the Dog and Partridge public house.  

 
2.0 Proposal 

 
2.1 The application seeks consent for a single storey rear extension. The proposal measures 

approximately 4m deep, 6.8m wide with a maximum height of 4.1m. The extension features a 
monopitched roof with bi-fold doors on the rear elevation and a single tall, narrow window on the 
side (east) facing elevation. The extension is finished in materials to match the main dwelling.  

  
 

Page 16Agenda Item 7



 

Page 2 of 3 
20/00720/FUL 

 CODE 

 

3.0 Site History 
 

3.1 The site has no relevant planning history 
 
 
4.0 Consultation Responses 

 
4.1 The following responses have been received from statutory and internal consultees: 

 

Consultee Response 

Town Council No comments 

 
4.2 7 responses (5 from the same household) have been received from members of the public objecting 

to the scheme: 
 

 Access onto neighbouring land 

 Impact on light 

 Overlooking from dormer and extension 

 Incomplete drawings 

 Unsympathetic design of dormer 
 
5.0 Analysis 

 
5.1 The key considerations in the assessment of this application are: 

 

 Design 

 Impacts upon residential amenity 
 

5.2 Design (Policy DM29 of the Development Management DPD (2020) and NPPF paragraphs 124, 
127 & 130 
 

5.2.1 
 

In terms of design, the extension remains subservient to the host dwelling and appears well 
proportioned in relation to both the dwelling and site. The matching materials are considered 
acceptable whilst the form and appearance will help to blend the extension into the existing building. 
The extension is set in by approximately 1m from the shared western boundary and 6m from the 
other side boundary which is shared with the car park.  
 

5.2.2 As the extension remains well enclosed within the garden and screened by the wall, trees and shrubs 
that line the eastern boundary, the proposal will not appear as an obtrusive addition to the area. 
Considering these matters, the proposal will not cause any visual harm to the existing property or 
street scene.  
 

5.3 Impacts upon residential amenity (Policy DM29 of the Development Management DPD (2020) and 
NPPF paragraphs 124, 127 & 130 
 

5.3.1 The bi-fold doors on the rear elevation are set down within the garden space of the application site 
and will primarily overlook the applicant’s own external amenity space. The side (east) facing window 
is towards the boundary wall and car park beyond.  
 

5.3.2 There is a neighbouring window close to the western boundary which serves a dining/reception 
room, there is also an additional bay window serving the same room on the western elevation. While 
the centre of the window lies on the extension side of the 45 degree line on floor plan, this does not 
appear to be the case on elevation plan. As such, daylight and sunlight levels are unlikely to be 
adversely affected because light will continue to be received over the roof and through the bay 
window on the side elevation. Furthermore, with the limited depth and the pitched roof of the 
extension sloping down into the garden, the proposal will not appear excessively overbearing. 
Considering these matters, the proposal is considered to comply with DM29 insomuch that the 
development will not have a significant detrimental impact on upon the residential amenity of 47 
Bare Avenue.  

Page 17



 

Page 3 of 3 
20/00720/FUL 

 CODE 

 

 
 
6.0 Conclusion and Planning Balance 

 
6.1 Due to the relatively small nature of the development involved, the proposal is considered 

appropriate to this residential site. The design is in keeping with the dwelling and does not occupy 
a prominent position within the street nor does it have a detrimental impact upon the residential 
amenity of the neighbouring properties. As the proposal complies with all the relevant local and 
national policies listed above, the application is recommended for approval subject to the two 
conditions noted below.  

 
Recommendation 
 

That Planning Permission BE GRANTED subject to the following conditions: 

 

Condition no. Description Type 

1 Standard three year timescale Control 

2 Development in accordance with plans Control 
 

 
 
Article 35, Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 
 
In accordance with the above legislation, Lancaster City Council has made the recommendation in a positive 
and proactive way to foster the delivery of sustainable development, working proactively with the applicant to 
secure development that improves the economic, social and environmental conditions of the area. The 
recommendation has been made having had regard to the impact of development, and in particular to the 
relevant policies contained in the Development Plan, as presented in full in the officer report, and to all relevant 
material planning considerations, including the National Planning Policy Framework, National Planning 
Practice Guidance and relevant Supplementary Planning Documents/ Guidance. 
 
Background Papers 
None  

 

Page 18



LIST OF DELEGATED PLANNING DECISIONS   

 
 

LANCASTER CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

APPLICATION NO 
 

DETAILS DECISION 
 

19/01509/FUL 
 
 

Low Hall Barn, Main Street, Whittington Change of use and 
conversion of barn and attached shippon to dwelling (C3) and 
holiday cottage (C3) for Mrs Louise Collinson (Upper Lune 
Valley Ward 2015 Ward) 
 

Application Permitted 
 

19/01510/LB 
 
 

Low Hall Barn, Main Street, Whittington Listed building 
application for the installation of replacement roof and 
internal floor to the barn, construction of roof on the shippon 
and installation of wall linings, insulation, roof lights, 
windows and doors including new openings throughout for 
Mrs Louise Collinson (Upper Lune Valley Ward 2015 Ward) 
 

Application Permitted 
 

19/01565/CU 
 
 

Ashleys Farm, Millhouses Road, Tatham Partly retrospective 
application for the change of use of agricultural workshop to 
an upholstery and woodwork workshop and creation of track 
and hardstanding for Mrs Susan Marsden (Lower Lune Valley 
Ward 2015 Ward) 
 

Application Permitted 
 

20/00062/LB 
 
 

Sparling Barn, Green Lane, Halton Listed building application 
for the retention and relocation of an air source heat pump 
and associated pipework for Mr M Clarkson (Halton-with-
Aughton Ward 2015 Ward) 
 

Application Permitted 
 

20/00071/DIS 
 
 

West Shoreline, The Lane, Sunderland Point Discharge of 
conditions 2, 3 and 4 on approved application 19/01235/FUL 
for Edward Levey (Overton Ward 2015 Ward) 
 

Application Permitted 
 

20/00077/DIS 
 
 

Canal Cottage, School Lane, Glasson Dock Discharge of 
conditions 3, 4 and 5 on approved application 19/01507/FUL 
for Mrs Janet Reid (Ellel Ward 2015 Ward) 
 

Application Permitted 
 

20/00100/FUL 
 
 

Ireby Green Caravan Park, Woodman Lane, Ireby Change of 
use of agricultural land for the siting of 18 touring caravan 
pitches and the creation of an associated internal access road 
and pitches for Mr John Welbank (Upper Lune Valley Ward 
2015 Ward) 
 

Application Permitted 
 

20/00198/LB 
 
 

Lancaster Railway Station, Westbourne Road, Lancaster 
Listed building application for the fixing of one internally 
illuminated projecting sign and two externally illuminated 
wall mounted signs for Mr Phillip Simpson (Castle Ward 2015 
Ward) 
 

Application Withdrawn 
 

20/00203/FUL 
 
 

10 Haverbreaks Place, Lancaster, Lancashire Demolition of 
existing dwelling and erection of a new dwelling (C3) for Mr & 
Mrs Patrickson (Scotforth West Ward 2015 Ward) 
 

Application Permitted 
 

20/00211/FUL 
 
 

Greystoke, Willey Lane, Cockerham Erection of a 2 storey 
dwelling, creation of vehicular access and associated hard 
landscaping for Mr & Mrs Benn (Ellel Ward 2015 Ward) 
 

Application Permitted 
 

Page 19 Agenda Item 8



LIST OF DELEGATED PLANNING DECISIONS   
20/00270/FUL 
 
 

Land To The Rear Of Redesmere, Green Lane, Heaton With 
Oxcliffe Change of use of agricultural land to caravan storage 
(B8) for Miss Hoey (Westgate Ward 2015 Ward) 
 

Application Permitted 
 

20/00287/FUL 
 
 

16 Levens Way, Silverdale, Carnforth Demolition of existing 
conservatory and erection of a single storey rear extension 
for Mr Chris Henderson (Silverdale Ward 2015 Ward) 
 

Application Permitted 
 

20/00310/FUL 
 
 

Moorlands, Slaidburn Road, Lowgill Erection of an agricultural 
polytunnel for Mr Andrew Illingworth (Lower Lune Valley 
Ward 2015 Ward) 
 

Application Permitted 
 

20/00333/FUL 
 
 

2 Low Road, Middleton, Morecambe Erection of two storey 
extension to the southern elevation, a single storey porch to 
the western elevation and widening of an access point and 
creation of parking area with wall and fencing for Mr Gareth 
Bailey (Overton Ward 2015 Ward) 
 

Application Permitted 
 

20/00379/FUL 
 
 

Cotestones Farm, Sand Lane, Warton Change of use of a 
paddock to a cattery (sui generis) and veterinary acupuncture 
treatment clinic (sui generis), erection of associated buildings 
and associated hard landscaping for Dr Helen Barker (Warton 
Ward 2015 Ward) 
 

Application Permitted 
 

20/00397/FUL 
 
 

3 Friar Street, Lancaster, Lancashire Change of use of offices 
(B1) to one 1-bed apartment (C3) and one 4-bed maisonette 
(C3) and insertion of windows to rear and side elevations for 
Mr Simon Dickinson (Castle Ward 2015 Ward) 
 

Application Permitted 
 

20/00466/VCN 
 
 

Maple Works, Northgate, White Lund Industrial Estate 
Retrospective application for the temporary siting of a 
refrigeration unit (pursuant to the variation of condition 2 on 
planning permission 19/00281/FUL to amend the date of 
removal to on or before 3 May 2021) for Mr R Altham 
(Westgate Ward 2015 Ward) 
 

Application Permitted 
 

20/00468/FUL 
 
 

8 Leapers View, Over Kellet, Carnforth Retrospective 
application for the demolition of existing rear extensions and 
retention of a part single storey, part two storey rear 
extension for Mrs Susan Ogden (Kellet Ward 2015 Ward) 
 

Application Permitted 
 

20/00478/FUL 
 
 

Proposed Development Site, Thornton Road, Morecambe 
Erection of a four storey building comprising 6 one bedroom 
flats (C3), 2 garages and storage areas for Mr Paul Hart 
(Poulton Ward 2015 Ward) 
 

Application Refused 
 

20/00481/FUL 
 
 

Todds House, Melling Road, Melling Erection of a 1.6m 
boundary garden wall and installation of a gate for Mrs Steph 
Williams (Upper Lune Valley Ward 2015 Ward) 
 

Application Permitted 
 

20/00482/LB 
 
 

Todds House, Melling Road, Melling Listed building 
application for the erection of a boundary garden wall and 
installation of a gate for Mrs Steph Williams (Upper Lune 
Valley Ward 2015 Ward) 
 

Application Permitted 
 

20/00484/OUT 
 
 

Land Adjacent Ash Trees Surgery, Halton Surgery, 110 High 
Road Outline application for the erection of a dwelling for Dr 
G. Hobbs (Halton-with-Aughton Ward 2015 Ward) 
 

Application Permitted 
 

Page 20



LIST OF DELEGATED PLANNING DECISIONS   
20/00505/LB 
 
 

Rockery Cottage, Whitebeck Lane, Priest Hutton Listed 
Building application for the replacement of windows and 
doors for Mr Neil Oldfield (Kellet Ward 2015 Ward) 
 

Application Permitted 
 

20/00506/FUL 
 
 

Workshop, Back Wellington Road North, Lancaster Change of 
use of existing workshop (B1) to dwelling (C3), construction 
of raised roof, installation of new windows and doors and a 
Juliette balcony for Mr Wilkinson (Scotforth West Ward 2015 
Ward) 
 

Application Permitted 
 

20/00508/FUL 
 
 

4 Gleneagles Drive, Lancaster, Lancashire Demolition of 
existing rear extension and erection of single storey rear 
extension for Drs Hutchinson (John O'Gaunt Ward 2015 
Ward) 
 

Application Permitted 
 

20/00514/FUL 
 
 

Land West Of Canal Lock, Tithebarn Hill, Glasson Dock 
Installation of a sculpture to mark the start/finish of the Bay 
Cycle Way for Morecambe Bay Partnership (Ellel Ward 2015 
Ward) 
 

Application Permitted 
 

20/00520/FUL 
 
 

Mulberry Manor, Low Road, Halton Demolition of side 
extension, erection of single storey side extension to create 
ancillary accommodation in association with Mulberry 
Manor, construction of a dormer extension to the rear 
elevation and alterations to the front and rear facing gables 
for Dr. R Whitaker (Halton-with-Aughton Ward 2015 Ward) 
 

Application Permitted 
 

20/00523/FUL 
 
 

20 Durham Avenue, Lancaster, Lancashire Erection of a single 
storey rear/side extension and construction of an external 
staircase for Mr Matthew St John (Scotforth East Ward 2015 
Ward) 
 

Application Refused 
 

20/00524/CCC 
 
 

Hanson Plc, Whitegate, White Lund Industrial Estate Change 
of use of land to an extension to an existing waste 
management site/waste transfer station and skip business for 
Mr Matthew Catlow (Westgate Ward 2015 Ward) 
 

No Objection 
 

20/00545/FUL 
 
 

5 Borwick Court, Borwick, Carnforth Construction of decking 
area, alterations to land levels and associated landscaping for 
Mrs Jeanette Morrell (Kellet Ward 2015 Ward) 
 

Application Permitted 
 

20/00546/FUL 
 
 

4 Roeburn Terrace, Harterbeck, Wray Erection of a single 
storey rear extension for Andrew Peach (Lower Lune Valley 
Ward 2015 Ward) 
 

Application Permitted 
 

20/00559/AD 
 
 

Hare Tarn Farm, Netherbeck, Carnforth Agricultural 
Determination for the erection of a storage building for Allen 
Brown (Carnforth And Millhead Ward 2015 Ward) 
 

Prior Approval Granted 
 

20/00569/FUL 
 
 

Claughton Hall Farm, Hornby Road, Claughton Creation of a 
slurry storage tank and perimeter fencing for Mr Isacc Bargh 
(Lower Lune Valley Ward 2015 Ward) 
 

Application Permitted 
 

20/00572/PLDC 
 
 

5 Well Lane, Warton, Carnforth Proposed lawful development 
certificate for demolition of conservatory and erection of 
single storey rear extension for Mr Mark Gillhespey (Warton 
Ward 2015 Ward) 
 

Lawful Development 
Certificate Granted 

 

Page 21



LIST OF DELEGATED PLANNING DECISIONS   
20/00582/FUL 
 
 

258 Oxcliffe Road, Heaton With Oxcliffe, Morecambe Erection 
of a detached outbuilding for Mr G Hoey (Westgate Ward 
2015 Ward) 
 

Application Permitted 
 

20/00584/FUL 
 
 

105 Hornby Road, Caton, Lancaster Erection of a single storey 
detached outbuilding for Mr Nick Davies (Lower Lune Valley 
Ward 2015 Ward) 
 

Application Permitted 
 

20/00597/FUL 
 
 

15 St Michaels Crescent, Bolton Le Sands, Carnforth Erection 
of a boundary fence to the front for Mr Graham Pickup 
(Bolton And Slyne Ward 2015 Ward) 
 

Application Withdrawn 
 

20/00598/PLDC 
 
 

19 Holbeck Avenue, Morecambe, Lancashire Proposed lawful 
development certificate for erection of single storey rear 
extension for Mr. & Mrs. S. Foy (Torrisholme Ward 2015 
Ward) 
 

Lawful Development 
Certificate Granted 

 

20/00599/PLDC 
 
 

9 Newlands Avenue, Lancaster, Lancashire Proposed lawful 
development certificate for erection of single storey rear 
extension for Mr.&Mrs. M. Walton (John O'Gaunt Ward 2015 
Ward) 
 

Application Permitted 
 

20/00600/FUL 
 
 

Batty Hill Farm, Lancaster Road, Cockerham Construction of a 
roof over existing silage pit for Mr Peter Hewitt (Ellel Ward 
2015 Ward) 
 

Application Refused 
 

20/00630/FUL 
 
 

77 Sand Lane, Warton, Carnforth Demolition of existing 
conservatory and erection of a single storey rear extension 
for Mrs Jessica Elleray (Warton Ward 2015 Ward) 
 

Application Permitted 
 

20/00631/PLDC 
 
 

Beckside Cottage, Whitebeck Lane, Priest Hutton Proposed 
lawful development certificate for erection of single storey 
rear extension for A Stoyle (Kellet Ward 2015 Ward) 
 

Application Withdrawn 
 

20/00636/PLDC 
 
 

11 Whin Avenue, Bolton Le Sands, Carnforth Proposed lawful 
development certificate for alterations to windows and doors 
to the rear elevation of the dwelling and single storey 
outrigger and installation of rooflights for Mr. & Mrs. P. 
Everson (Bolton And Slyne Ward 2015 Ward) 
 

Lawful Development 
Certificate Granted 

 

20/00638/PLDC 
 
 

78 Broadway, Morecambe, Lancashire Proposed lawful 
development certificate for the conversion of the garage into 
ancillary accommodation and installation of a replacement 
frontage for Mr. C. Naylor (Bare Ward 2015 Ward) 
 

Lawful Development 
Certificate Granted 

 

20/00644/PLDC 
 
 

27 Oakville Road, Heysham, Morecambe Proposed lawful 
development certificate for the erection of a single storey 
rear extension, construction of a dormer extension to the 
rear elevation, and replacing an existing gable end first floor 
window with matching wall for Mr. B. Oliver (Overton Ward 
2015 Ward) 
 

Lawful Development 
Certificate Granted 

 

20/00657/PLDC 
 
 

84A Crag Bank Road, Carnforth, Lancashire Proposed lawful 
development certificate for demolition of existing 
conservatory and erection of single storey rear extension and 
installation of bi-fold doors to the rear elevation for Mr. M. 
Bell (Carnforth And Millhead Ward 2015 Ward) 
 

Lawful Development 
Certificate Granted 

 

Page 22



LIST OF DELEGATED PLANNING DECISIONS   
20/00662/AD 
 
 

Green Pastures, Capernwray Road, Capernwray Agricultural 
determination for the erection of a storage building, apron 
and track for Mr S Wightman (Kellet Ward 2015 Ward) 
 

Prior Approval Refused 
 

20/00665/FUL 
 
 

37 Connaught Road, Lancaster, Lancashire Demolition of 
existing rear store, erection of a single storey rear extension, 
insertion of window to the side elevation and raising of 
boundary wall for Mr G Renwick (John O'Gaunt Ward 2015 
Ward) 
 

Application Permitted 
 

20/00693/AD 
 
 

Land At , Back Lane, Wennington Agricultural Determination 
for creation of tracks for Mr Andrew Stephenson (Upper Lune 
Valley Ward 2015 Ward) 
 

Prior Approval Not Required 
 

20/00708/FUL 
 
 

10 Taylor Grove, Morecambe, Lancashire Erection of a single 
storey rear extension for Mr Horton (Bare Ward 2015 Ward) 
 

Application Permitted 
 

20/00748/PAD 
 
 

Unit 4, 1 Southgate, White Lund Industrial Estate Prior 
approval for demolition of single storey dock leveller for 
Lorraine Squire (Westgate Ward 2015 Ward) 
 

Prior Approval Refused 
 

20/00750/NMA 
 
 

Folly Farm, Folly Lane, Slyne Non-material amendment to 
approved application 19/01468/FUL to change rear wall of 
extension to sandstone and sandstone quoins to the side wall 
for Mr David Hughes (Bolton And Slyne Ward 2015 Ward) 
 

Application Permitted 
 

20/00758/AD 
 
 

Brunstow, Scriffen Lane, Ellel Agricultural Determination for 
concreting of existing farm yard for Mr James Hayhurst (Ellel 
Ward 2015 Ward) 
 

Prior Approval Refused 
 

 

Page 23


	Agenda
	5 Timber Yard Rabbit Lane Gressingham
	6 9 Beech Avenue Galgate
	7 49 Bare Avenue Morecambe
	8 Delegated List

